
MINUTES OF THE 
ORGANIZA TIONAUREGULAR MEETING OF THE 

WASHINGTON COUNTY QUORUM COURT 

Thursday, January 15, 2015 
6:00 p.m. 

Washington County Quorum Court Room 

1.1 The Washington County Quorum Court met for .an organizationaVregular 
session on Thursday, January 15, 2015. The meeting was called to order by 
County Judge-Marilyn Edwards. 

1.2 Judge .Edwards reported that she received a letter today from· Justice of the 
Peace· Jimmy Mardis resignirig:-as JP for District 2. The Quorum Court will 
need to declare a vacancy at the regular meeting in February. She further 
welcomed the returning JPs as1well as the five new members and stated that 
she looks forward to working with them. 

1.3 T. Lundstrum led .. the Quorum Court in a prayer and in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

1.4 MEMBERS PRESENT: Daniel Balls, Harvey Bowman, Rick Cochran, Robert 
Dennis, Lisa Ecke, John Firmin, Ann Harbison, Tom Lundstrum, Sue 
Madison, Joel Maxwell, Butch Pond, and Bill Ussery. 

1.5 MEMBERS ABSENT: Eva Madison and Joe Patterson. 

1.6 Judge Edwards reported that E. Madison and J. Patterson were out of town 
on business. 

1. 7 OTHERS PRESENT: County Judge Marilyn Edwards, County Attorney Steve 
Zega; County Chief of Staff Dan Short, County 9QrJlptroller Cheryl Bolinger; 
Interested Citizens; and Members of the Press. 

1.8 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA: Judge Edwards asked if there were any 
additions or deletions to the agenda. 

1.9 A motion was made and seconded to adopt the agenda as presented. 
The motion pas,ed unanimously by voice vote by those present. The 
agenda was adopted ·as presented. 

1.1 O APPROVAL OF MINUTES: ;Judge Edwards asked for approval of the minutes 
of the December 18 regular meeting of the Washington County Quorum 
Court. 

1.11 S. Madison stated that she could not vote on these minutes as she was not at 
the December 18 meeting. 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 2 

2.1 A motion was made and· seconded to approve the minutes as 
distributed. The motion pass.ed by a vote of 12 In favor and 1 abstaining 
by voice· vote. 'the minutes-were approved. 

2.2 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ALFORD JOE MAIN TO SOLEMNIZE THE 
MARRIAGE OF .SAMANTHA RENEE GOODING AND JAMES ZACHARY 
SMITH ON JANUARY 16, 2015. IN WASHINGTON.COUNTY. ARKANSAS: 
R. Cochran introduced A Resolution· Authonzing. ·Alford Joe Main To 
Solemnize The Marriage Of Samantha Renee Gooding And James 
Zachary Smith .on-January 16, 2015, In Washington County, Arkansas, 
and Caunty Attorney Steve Zega read the resoluti0n. 

2.3 R. Cochran made a motion to adoP.t the resolution. J.. Finnin seconded. 

2.4 Citizen Comments: There were no comments made. 

2.5 With no further discussion, Judge Edwards called for a vote on the 
motion to adopt the resolution. 

2.6 The motion passed unanimously by those present by voice vote. The 
resolution was adopted. 

2. 7 The couple who was present was congratulated. 

RESOLU.TION NO. 2015-01, BOOK NO. 3, PAGE NO. 94 

2.8 POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE QUORUM COURT. FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT. GENERAL MEETING CONDUCT. AND MEETING 
PROCEDURES: County Attorney Steve Zega stated that the three broad 
areas that former County Attorney George Butler would touch on at the 
organizational meetings included the Freedom of Information Act, powers and 
duties of .the Quorum Court, and solemnization of marriages. He referred to 
memorandums .previously distributed regarding FOi: and the :marriage issue, 
stating that he would begin by touching on a summary of those items in the 
memo. 

2.9 Freedom of Information Act: County Attorney Steve Zega stated that the 
Freedom of Information Act "FOIA" covers two areas, the open records and 
open meetings with which government/elected officials have to concern 
themselves. The underlying pr:incipal is the .same with both. The publics' 
business has to be conducted in public which means what they do and how 
they make their decisions and county policy. Discussion they have about 
county policy should be in a way that is accessible to the public, that they 

2 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 3 

understand , and · have the ability to comment; criticize, question and clarity 
when necessary. He stated that sometimes open records and open meetings 
become a little muddled in terms of which is which, and if ·there is not a 
distinction, the idea is that if it is a question, generally SQeaking, about 
whether they should do something in public and. whether they should 
disclose, then the answer is yes. He stated that there were exceptions and 
exclusions from the FOIA such as HIPPA protected information that was 
generated by government, .things that are accepted from disclosure or 
immediate notice to the public such as open criminal ·investigations. He 
stated that in general when they do something that affects county business, 
they have to do it in publie. He st,ated that the Arkansas Supreme Court has 
taken a very broad definition of what is "county business" as anything that 
touches on county policy, the· performance of.county officials or employees, 
what they ought to do or are thinking about doing about; for example, a 
certain county road or something that the County Judge has done in the 
County ·Gou rt. S. Zega again reiterated if they have to think about whether it 
is county business or not, then if.probably is. 

3.1 County Attorney Steve Zega stated t~at he has .never believed that JPs 
cannot communicate with each other ih writing as long as it is not a back and 
forth type .communication where· they are responding to each other by instant 
messaging or Skype, etc. or e-mails . that they are responding to instantly 
which becomes an electronic meeting that the. public has not been notified of 
or is not aware of and the press does not have notice of. He stated that he 
does not believe that JPs cannot write each·other letters as long as they are 
made available to the public, or that they cannot send each other e-mails as 
long as they are not beginning real time conversation, and as long as the e
mail is· made available to. the public. He noted that he has asked and advised 
the JPs to do when they write to each other, that they make that writing 
available to the Quorum Court Coordinator and in general copy it to the press 
so that -they know .what is going on. He stated that he does advise against 
JPs· talking to each other on the phone or in person about county business for 
the reason that they do not want to create the appearance that they are not 

· doing business in public, so the FOIA puts constraints on JPs and Quorum 
Court members that maybe other lawmakers do not necessarily face, but it is 
incumbent upon them to make sure that they do the publics' business in 
~~ . 

3.2 County Attorney Steve Zega stated that the natural question is what happens 
if they violate FOIA, and noted that there is a criminal penalty, Class C 
misdemeanor which is punishable by up to 30 days in jail and up to a $500 
fine. He thinks that the court's opinion on this is if the mental state that you 
have to have to violate FOIA is· negligently, or you do not even have to intend 

3 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page4 

or mean to do it, and if you. were negligent in violating the FOIA and found a 
pro.secutor willing to prosecute then potentially they could face the above 
penalty . . He stated that he is not-meaning to -intimidate JPs by that, but it is 
his job and incumbel'lt . upon him to explain the ramifications and possible 
sanctions for F.=OIA violation. He stated that the real "hammer" for violations 
of the FOIA is if.there is an ordinance or resolution found to be passed by a 
Quorum Court in violation of FOi , then the court can void that policy. The 
Quorum Court d0es a lot of hard work and does not want to have to throw it 
away on something silly like that. 

4.1 County Attorney Steve Zega introduced Brenda Blagg, a long-time journalist 
and someone· he· has a lot of ~si;>ect, to· address.the Quorum Court further on 
the Freedom of;lnfonnation Act. 

4.2 Brenda Blagg stated that she: has . been, covering this county· government's 
news for the , past 29 years throu111h th~ trar:isition from the very old kind of 
Quorum Court into the new·one,.stating that it is a differeAt critter than it used 
to be. She stated that part of the transition was learning to live within FOIA. 
She noted tbat the 1967 version of this law was passed when she was in 
college and she remains a member of ·the FOi Coalition which is a statewide 
organization that does what they can to keep the law strong. She referred to 
an FOi booklet that was distributed noting that they are redone following 
every legislative session because they inevitably do something that affects 
the law, and thi.s ·booklet should help the JPs find provisions in the law on 
their own. She stated that by going to the Arkansaspress.org, the FOi Act 
booklet can be dowr:iloaded onto their computers and search anytime they 
have a question. Ms. Blagg stated that there are a lot of court cases, 
Attorney General Opinions, as well as questions and aFlswers in the booklet 
that wilb answer.: most questions the JPs will come across. 

4.3 Ms. Blagg states that her main purpose tonight .is to enco1;1rage the JPs to 
remember what it was like not to be inside the government, but to be on the 
outside looking, in. There are thousands of citizens on the outside that are 
interested· in wtt~t they do in the .Quorum Court and· unless they are allowed 
to be ·a part of it, they do not know how to respond to them. She stated that 
their best defense for anything that they do is transparency and FOIA assures 
it and people like herself to make sure that they .do not forget that. She 
further stated that everything in this law is written for the public in general and 
not for the press, as their rights are the same as her rights as a journalist. 
Ms. Blagg stated if County Attorney Zega was not available for some reason, 
the JPs as well as public citizens are welcome to contact her at home at (479) 
443-5702, and although she is not an attorney, she can guide them through 
the FOi booklet and help to answer their questions about FOIA. 

4 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 5 

5.1 In response to a question from S. Madison relating to· letters or e-mails to 
each other who in the press they need to COP.Y to, Ms.' Blagg stated that the 
law puts a burden on the media. in a sense that they need to ·actually request 
that ... they .be notified. She stated in general a pap!3r"like NWA Times should 
have a request on file that says they· want to be notified of special· or regular 
meetings and any good . politician will make sure that anyone that actively 
covers the public body is getting the. notices. She noted that in the case of 
this ·Qaorum Court, the· Quor:um Gourt Coordinator in the.~County Judge's 
Office sends those notifications .to anyone wh.o has made such a request at 
any:time. 

5.2 Powers and Duties of the Quorum Court: . County Attorney Steve Zega stated 
that the. memo· he provided to the Quorum Court lists statutory duties and 
much like the FOIA information provided,,. it ·is not nearly · au inclusive. He 
noted that from A.C.A. §' 14-"14-802,. is provided a broad thumbnail statutory 
grant of aathority to _the JPs .within the ·context of Amendment 55, which 
reorganized county government in the late 1970's. He noted that the list 
shows what they are mandated to ,do: (1) the administration of justice through 
the several courts of record of the county; (2) law enforcement protection 
services and the custody of persons accused or convicted of crimes; (3) real 
and personal .property tax: a~ministration, including assessments, collection, 
and custody of tax proceeds; (4) court ~nd public records management, as 
provided by .. law; including registration, r~rding, and custody of public 
records; and (5) all ·other services prescri_bed l;>y state law·for performance by 
each of the elected county officers or departments of county government. 

5.3 S. Zega noted that perhaps the most ·important of JPs duties is ·codified at 
AC.A. §14-1'4'904(b), to leVy taxes and making of appropriations; i~cluding (i) 
the Quorum Court at its regular meeting· in November of each year shall levy 
the. county taxes, municipal taxes, and school taxes for the curre.nt year; and 
(ii) before the end of each fiscal year, the Quorum Court shall make 
appropriations for the expen~es of county government for the following year. 

5.4 S. Zega stated noted that a list of services that the Quorum Court may 
provide if it so ., chooses as shown- in · AC.A. §14-14-802 ·or discretionary 
functions that a ~unty .. government acting through the Quorum Court may 
provide throqgh . ordinance for. the establishment of any service or 
performance- of any function not expressly prohibited by the Arkansas 
Constitution or by law. He stated that these legislative services and functions 
include, but are not limited to agricultural services, community and rural 
development services, community services, emergency .services, human 
services, solid waste services, transportation services, and water, sewer and 
other utility services. 

5 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 6 

6.1 Meeting Procedure: County Attorney Steve Zega stated that the Quorum 
Court constituted itself many years ago as .a body that·follows "Robert's Rules 
Of Order"r and ·addre.ssed a summary. handout that talks about motions and 
what has to be brought to the Chair:s attention; what kinds of various motions 
it .takes to pass, etc. He noted that Roberts Rules of Order are modified 
slightly by procedural guides from the Legislature, such as the difference 
between. passing an appropriation ordinance which may be passed on the 
first reading and other .types of ordinances that do noL have emergency 
clauses that .take thre.e readings to pass. He pointed out .that frequently the 
rules.are suspended arid ordinances are placed on second and third readings 
if they are not particularly controversial, read by title only, and then they 
proceed to vote.on them the first night brought up. He pointed out that certain 
types of ordinances take a two-thirds vote or anything with an emergency 
clause to approve and can ;be· passed later without the emergency clause by 
simple majority. He , stated that in general, their business w.ill be done by 
having · at least 8 affinnative votes. If they do not have 8 votes in the 
affinnative, as a presenttVote or abstention procedurally count as a no vote, 

- then the ordinaAce or resolution win not pass·. 

6.2 County Attorney .Steve Zega stated that generally . speaking the way the 
Washington County ·Quorum Court does business, most ordinances and 
resolutions begin in committee. There are regular Gommittee meetings and 
Judge. Edwards. will. talk about the assigr:iments she has made to those 
committees. He pointed :out· if a JP's committee to whom they brought an 
ordinance says they are not going to pass it onto the full Quorum Court with a 
do pass recommendation, that JP as a member has the right to bring it 
around the oommittee to the full Quorum- Court to present it .anyway. He 
noted that this is not seen very often because generally speaking they try to 
respect the committee process because that is where most of the heavy lifting 
is done. Mr. Zega noted that he doe.s not make policy.-for.the courity, but will 
advise the county to try to stay out the unconstitutional and illegal ditches, 
and ·if the question is whether something is .the right thing to do for the county, 
ultimately that belongs with the 15 elected members of this body. 

6.3 Solemnizing Marriages: County Attorney Steve Zega stated that one of the 
best things he found about being a JP is that he was able to . marry people. 
He stated as per Attorney General Opinions, as an el.acted Justice of the 
Peace, they can marry anyone in Arkansas and if they have served two 
tenns, can perfonn marriage ceremonies even after they are off the Court. 
He noted that they are not allowed to collect a fee, at least as long as they are 
on the Quorum Court. He further noted if invited to a paid dinner or reception, 
this .is allowed and not considered a fee. In general, he said not to take any 
type of pecuniary award for marrying people while onAhe Court, but rather do 
it because it is fun and a great public service. 

6 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 7 

7.1 T. Lundstrum stated that he is both a JP and an Ordained Minister and has 
never married anyone as a .Justice of the Peace, noting when he signs the 
Marriage Certificate, he signs as a Minister with the book and page on the 
Marriage License. He further has never charged to perform a marriage 
ceremony, but does say that they can give a contribution to the church that he 
pastors, which he will take ~nd give to the church. He stated he believes he 
can do this without any question,, but he does• not want any false accusations 
made because he is not.marrying them as a JP. 

7.2 County Attorney Steve Zega .addressed T. Lundstrum stating that he did not 
believe this would raise any issue with the scenario he described. 

7.3 L. Ecke asked if it was .permissible for. money·to be given to a favorite charity 
in her name; to which County Attorney Steve Zega responded that would be 
allowed as long as she is not .taking money herself as she is not to be 
personally compensated for performing a marriage. 

7.4 S. Madison asked how their seating at the meetings was determined; to which 
Judge Edwards responded that the JPs are seated alphabetically by her. 

7.5 S. Madison further asked if there was statutory authority for this; to which 
County Attorney Steve Zega stated in general the presiding officer can 
arrange-the room. She asked. Mr. Zega to check to see if there was statutory 
authority for that and if not, whether that would fall to one of the.prerogatives 
of the court. S. Madison noted that she does not have any problem with the 
way that it is being done, but wants to know procedurally because there are 
certain legislative functions that belong 'to the legislative body. 

7.6 REVIEW . OF QUG>RUM . :coURT e©MMIIT.EE ASSIGNMENTS FOR 
2015120~.6. ANO·r<SCMEIE>tJLING ·oi; -MEETING DAT>ES1TIMES: Judge 
Edwards referred to ·a document distributed that 5er forth the Quorum Court 
Committee assignments that she had made··for the 2016-16 term. The 
assignments were as follows: County· Services - D. Balls, R. Dennjs, J. 
Firmin, T: Lundstrum, E. Madison, S. Madison, and JP District #2; Public 
Works - H. Bowman, R. Cochran, A. Harbison, T. Lundstrum, J. Maxwell, J. 
Patterson, and -B-. Pond; Personnel - D. B'alls, H. Bowman, L. Ecke, A. 
Harbison. J . .Patterson, B. Pong, and B. Uss~ry; Jail/Law Enforcement/Courts 
- J. Firmin, T. Lundstrum, E. Madison, S. Madison, J. Maxwell, J. Patterson, 
and JP District #2; and, Finance and Budget - R. C-ochran. R. Dennis, L. 
Ecke, J. Firmin, A. Harbison, B. Pond, and B. Ussery. 

7. 7 Judge Edwards referred to the Committee descriptions and responsibilities 
that were also distributed as were proposed dates/times for the initial 

7 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 8 

meetings. She noted after the committees meet and elect their chair, they 
can change the· future.date if they wish to, but .they needed a date set up so 
they can follow procedure to be able to get the committees started. 

8.1 A motion W8$ made·. and seconded to . confirm the first committee 
meetlng .-dates as set. The motion passed unanimously by those 
present by voiee vote. The.first meeting dates were confirmed. 

8.2 SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE TO SERVE ON THE ARKANSAS 
ASSOCIATION ·oF QUORUM COURTS FOR THE 201.5/2015 TERM: Judge 
Edwards stated, that the Quorum Court needs to select a JP to serve as its 
representative to the Arkansas Association of Quorum Courts for this new 
term and .asked for any nominations. 

8.3 H. Bowman :nominated JP S. Madison to serve as the Quorum Court's 
representative. 

8.4 S. Madison decllned·the nomination. 

8.5 R. Cochran stated that E. Madison has served Washington County well in this 
capacity for the 1 las~ two .years and questioned .whether. she. might be willing to 
continue such. He asked S. Madison if she thought E. Madison would be 
willing to do·this; to which S. Madison stated that she was not c0mfortable 
answering for E. Madison. 

8.6 Judge EdwardS; suggested that since E. Madison was not in attendance at 
that meeting, that they table this matter until their regular February meeting. 

8. 7 R. Cochran. made a motion. that ,they . postpone assignment of the 
representative to serve on the Arkansas Association of Quorum Courts 
until their next regular Quorum Court meeting. ··. The motion was 
seconded. The .motlon,passed unanimously .by ·those .preser,it by voice 
vote. The matter was,tabled. 

8.8 H. Bowman stated that they are aware that the State Legislature .. has given 
Judge Edwards·the authority to limit the size of committees. He referred to 
County Attorney Steve Zega's pr:evious. statement that most of the "heavy 
lifting" of their business is done in committees and he has given this a lot of 
thought believing that every one of them has a responsibility to make a 
contribution to managing the finances of the county and if they are not on the 
Finance/Budget Committee they can make comments, but cannot vote and 
he believes there is great deal of difference between the two. He noted by 
the time they get to the final approval of the committee reports, it basically 

8 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page9 

comes down to a "rubber stamp" type of situation. H. Bowman stated that he 
wanted .to appeal to" Judge Edwards to reverse her position regarding limiting 
the number of; people ~-n the finance/Budget~Committee to seven and allow 
all 15 members to s~rve Off this committee because it is incumbent on every 
one of them to- m~ke· their opinioris known an~ their votes cast. 

9.1 Judge .Edwards · addressed H. Bowman, stating that she appreciates his 
comments, but will be leavimg the number to serve on the Finance/Budget 
Committee at seven: ' 

9.2 S . Madison,state.<i"that she has.done a little research ort this. issue herself and 
in casual conversation With adawyer friend in Little Rock, noting that the Act 
that the . Legi slature . P.assed : giving the .County Judge the ··authority to 
determine membership of a Committee of the Whole was in fact after 
Washington County had already passed an ordinance establishing their 
Finance Committee as a Committee of the Whole. In looking at a recent 
ballot issue,·a court opjnion said that the Legislature .is presumed to be acting 
prospectively unless they specifically say they are acting retroactively. She 
stated that it seems.that this court h~s - determined to apply this new statute 
retroactively. 

9.3 County Attom~y Steve Zega responded to S. Madison stating 1that two points 
about this is that he dQes not believe that this the statute applies retroactively 
in their case because this is a new court with new committee members. 
Secondly, whether th~ .of'9inance passed: by _the County Quorum Court in 
organizing ~ Comm~ttee of the Whole is.displaced by a state statUte and in his 
opinion in this ~Stlljt is because the· 1anguag~ in the statute is, "A regular or 
special .committee of. 'a Quon.Im Court shall no~ consist of more than a quorum 
of the whole-.body without consent of the County Judge.", He stated that is in 
the present by any language or rule of statutory construction and he believes 
that it ap~lies to this court for those two reasons. 

9.4 S. Madison asked if the committees that were established by that ordinance 
did not continue unless the ordinance is changed and the assumption would 
be that ,they have continued beca!Jse they; have not taken any new action. 
She stated that she does not understand the logic that says that the Finance 
and .Buqget .committee does ·not continue as it was constituted under the 
ordinance. 

9.5 County Attorney Steve Zega responded to S. Madison stating that he would 
agree with that in terms of the means of the committees and their assigned 
duties, but State law in his opinion displaces or trumps that ordinance. 

9 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 10 

10.1 S. ·Madison stated that she would get a copy of the Supreme Court case she 
is referring to for County Attorney Zega to review. 

10.2 H. B.owrnan .asked for. Judge· Edwards to -share .her rationale of selecting only 
seven people to serve 011 the Finance and Budget Committee instead of 
having all fifteen JPs serve on this committee. 

10.3 Judge Edwards responded1to H.-Bowman.stating that she feels that there was 
an awful lot of time taken and a lot of expenditures with the Quorum Court 
going $95,000 over their budget this last year with all the meetings they had 
and. she· feels like seven members can make· these. decisions. She further 
poir:ited out .ev.en·. though -they are not all voting, every JP can attend the 
Finance. and Budget-meetings and make comments ,so that they are aware of 
what is·going on when the issues come before the full Quorum Court. 

10.4 H. Sowman ·stated,that he does not believe there is a question that they do 
not all "k11ow what.is goir:ig on, but those committees do pass on issues that 
are rubber stamped, and not being able to vote in that process makes a great 
deal of difference. By the time the Quorum Court meets to approve those, a 
lot of the details have fallen to the wayside. 

10.5 Judge. Edward~ - stated that she understands whe.re H .. Bowman is. coming 
from. 

10.6 Hr •. Bowman stated that his JP compensation last year.was about $10,000 and 
with -15 JPs on this.court would total $150,000 paid out. He noted with all the 
intellect .and experience.that they bring to the table, the total cost of $150,000 
brings a great.de.al of value to Washington .County. ,He noted that they had a 
very difficult budget situation this past year because of all the finance 
pressure, which created the most time consumed in that process and he 
thinks to eliminate the contributions as per our agreement in this process is 
really less than favorable to the county. 

10.7 R Cochran stated that there have been several times .when he attended 
meetings; but was not sitting on the committee ar;id brought up an idea that 
was pertinent.to the subject at hand and while.he could not make the motion 
to amend, it was done by one of the committee members. Therefore,. he 
stated that even though they are not voting members of the committee, their 
involvement is still very important and can have a positive impact. 

10.8 T. Lundstrum stated that discussing tbis topic tonight is basically a mute point 
because what is it is, but he does believe what the State Legislature did was 
a violation of the doctrine of separation of powers and at every level of 

10 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 11 

government- that . he· is aware of, the legislative body maRes . their own 
decisions regarding committees.- He s.tated that this.ha$ been·:a• long time 
part. of .fheir. ~govemment' process nationwide and sugg~sted· the· thing to do 
was to go· to tittle Rock and try tQ get this char:iged:back·the way ·it should be. 

11.1 S. M~dison stated·that-:their> d.esire to.save $95;000 Js ,being negated by the 
statement that th'ey.are all able to attend t~~ ,committee meetlr;igs anyway and 
give input, even -though to a muted .degree, · She·· stated that they are not 
going .to save any -mon~y if: they all, still go to Finance Committee meetings, 
but this just means that some of them will have less influence,and less of an 
ability to work through the problems of this .coun!Y's budget. She thinks that 
the· hard work done· last-year had-a very,gqod result for the ,county and there 
was,signiftcant->savings whicti she 'believes is~important that -they all continue 
to strive . for. She stated that she. attended many of those meetings and 
believes it was .important foJ!.the Finance Committee to have everybody there 
and she appreciated .their: hard .work, but believes -that this is a setback for the 
county. 

11 .2 COUNJ:Y JWDGE'S REPORT: ,Judge.-Edwartl~ referred to the me_morandum 
distnbuted from her reporiting on .. proper.ty disposed of during 2014 t~at was 
no longer of value to the -County that sh.e is required to mal\e the court aware 
of. ·· 

11 .3 A motjon was rnade ·by Sue Madison and .seconded to accept this report. 
The motion.:passed· unjmimously by those· p,res9nt-by·votce vote. 

11.4 Judge Edwards anno1,meed l tiat Chief of Staff Dan. Short. would be giving 
report from·the·Road Department. 

11":5 Dan Short addressed the Quorum Court .intropucing himself as the Chief of 
Staff for ·Judge · Edwa~s wh'er~in he assists ·her in administration and 
management of 15, departments. He, noted·. that typically Shawn Shrum, 
Assistant Road · SYP.~rintehdent, would present this ilifonnation; however, Mr. 
Shrum was out of town this evening. 

11.6 Mr. Shon ·reported , for · 2014, the Washir.\gton County Ro~d Department 
rechipped al)chsealee appr:pxim~tely· 60 miles of road, noting that reseal on 
chip and seal .roads- is, doEie"about every seven years, so -they typically try to 
complete 50-60 miles ever.~" year. He reported that they turned 4.5 miles of 
gravel road into a hard surface of some kind with 2.7 miles chip and seal and 
1.8 miles asphalt. -Additionally, they ove-rlaid about 2.9 miles of asphalt. Mr. 
Short reported that the next major event' for the Road Department in 2014 
was beginning to replace the Stonewall Bridge over the Muddy Fork of the 
Illinois River. 

11 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 12 

12.1 Mr. Short .reporte<Hhat ~urrent new constru_ctioniis-CR1090 and CR199 near 
Rouf.ld Mountain, _preparing those road beds for,;chip an.d seal. during this 
year. He stated that they:are.also ,workirng on.Wolf. Tr-a~k Road southwest of 
Summers preparinQc-that road bed for chip and ·seal:this year. He noted that 
they are working on Smokey Bear off of Black Oak Road , widening that area 
due to a request-from citizer;is living_ in}tl;lat ·aliea :who· felt like it. was· necessary 
for the. buses t~t travel ·this.ifoad to piek up· school ·children ,. Rating that there 
are ·two different schools· tha.t serve that road • . He noted that this road was 
narrow in some1spots and they are in the ·proi:;ess-ofwidening that road which 
will be a better gravel road . 

12.2 Mr. Short· reported· that the¥ have-c.losed two bridges in Washington County 
this week; namely they closed Orr Bridge west of Highway 265 on 1/12 and 
on 1/,13,_and the -Woolsey ·Bridge adjacent to Highway 7.1 south of West Fork. 
He explained tine reason, for ·both bridg.e closing5 ~,was·. a saf.ety factor. He 
noted that they inspected both structures· last year and Judge Edwards made 
the decision that they could no longer let the public drive over those bridges. 
He stated that they will be starting the eastside end walls and wing walls on 
Stonewall Bridg,e .. as -saon as weather permits al"ld ·cufreAtly, have the head 
wall and wing wall on· the other side and two pier;s in the· middle finished. 

12.3 S. -Madison asked what changes have been made at the Road Department in 
response to the allegations of inappropriate construction and gave the 
example of :how they bend -rebar: and.are they .using epex1f' .to. firmly establish 
rebar in already peured .. concrete. -She.·r:eterred ,to the .article Mr. Heitmeyer 
wrote in the newspaper about the county roads ,left her with quite a few 
questions as to. tbe Road . Department's construction on bridges and left her 
less than assured that they are following proper·pro.cedures. 

12.4 Mr. Short addressed S. Madison stating that he is a, little hesitant to respond 
specifically in a1 situation where a lawsuit has been brought. He stated that 
they strive .eV-ery ·day to improve their ·methods ~and if methods are identified 
that they are lai;:king in.,they will. take, every.. step-they can to irnpr.ove. 

12.5 S. Madison stated that it concerns· her considering they just had two bridges 
closed because of safety •and the. concl~sion she .jurnps to is whether they 
have-been following proper· maintenance.:g.uidelines.,, She st~ted if they are 
not. folio.wing plans given b¥ that the en~ineers:. ,who they pay for the plans, 
are they following plans for proper maintenance. 

12.6 Mr. Short responded that.s. Madison is assuming that. the Road Department 
did not follow plans that-the engineers laid out and·he cannot say that this is a 
true statement. 

12 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 13 

13.1 S. Madison asked why she had to file an FOIA request to get the name of the 
engineer that did the plans for Harvey Dowell Bridge; to which Mr. Short 
responded that it. was not necessary for her to file an FOi and if she had 
called him, he would have given her that information. 

13.2 S. Madison responded to Mr. Short stating that she had asked both Secretary 
Karen Beeks and County Attorney George Butler and both ho were not sure, 
after which Assistant Road Superir:itendent Shawn Shrum was called. He 
would not give her that information unless she came to the Road Department, 
which she was unable to do that day. 

13.3 Mr. Short apologized stating that if she had~called him, he would have been 
able to"give her that information as he sees -no reason for not providing that 
information. 

13.4 $ ; Madison stated that she does not see any reason for her to have to jump 
from one elected official to another. just to get a simple question answered 
that Mr. Shrum knew the answer; to which Mr. Short. She added that it was a 
little uncomfortable to have to file an FOi request with her own County. 

13.5 S. Madison stated that she would like to know what happened to the extra 
yards of concrete· that they are1 missing as Mr. Holtmeyer's newspaper article 
did not cover that. She noted that apparently 130 yards of concrete were 
poured for a 60 yard job, so 70 yards of concrete went somewhere or they 
paid for concrete that they did not get. 

13.6 Mr. Short responded to S. Madison stating that he doubts that this happened. 

13. 7 S. Madison asked if thes~ allegations were being investigated and coming up 
with answers as to whether they were accurate or not; to which Mr. Short 
responded that they"are looking into all allegations. 

13.8 S. Madison asked when the Quorum Court would have the answers because 
the lawsuit is about whistle blower and freedom of speech; to which Mr. Short 
responded he thinks they will be able to be more forthcoming about the 
information once the lawsuit is complete as he hesitates to talk too much 
about what has been charged against the County. 

13.9 S. Madison stated that to her they are talking about spending public tax 
dollars and perhaps public safety; to which Mr. Short responded that he has 
the utmost faith in the construction of the Harvey Dowell Bridge and the 
Stonewall Bridge that they are currently working on, and would have no 
compunction in letting his family drive over the Harvey Dowell Bridge. 

13 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 14 

14.1 S. Madison stated that Mr. Ball, the State Inspector that she talked to, advised 
her that they do their .ratings based on the engineering plans and assume that 
they are built as the plans show. 

14.2 Judge Edwards requested that County Attorney Steve Zega speak to this 
matter. 

14.3 County Attorney, Steve Zega s.tated that Mr. Short's point about the fact that 
this is in litigation and S. Madison's point that they are talking. about public 
dollars are both well taken. He stated that the issue.is how much they talk 
about issues that are in litigation. As the County Attorney he would not be 
doing his job for the County and this body that appropriates money for the 
County if he did not say that it is never wise to start talking about matters that 
are directly under litigation while that litigation is going on for a variety of 
reasons that he would be happy to articulate in greater depth now or at a later 
time. However, he stated the point that they are talking about. substantial 
amounts of pul:>lic money is true, this lawsuit that is .filed seeks substantial 
amounts of public money as well which is all more reason to be careful and 
safeguard what they say about things that are under litigation, including the 
specific plans for that bridge and whether or not any deviation was taken from 
them at any point in time. -He stated that these are important matters that 
should be discussed in public; however, at ·some point in time they need to 
realize that the county is being sued as a derivative of those questions right 
now. 

14.4 J. Firmin questioned whether bikes could still be ridden over the Woolsey 
Bridge; to whi<i:h Mr. Short responded that the Woolsey Bridge is totally 
blocked with mounds of dirt on both ends of the bridge as well as guardrails 
up on the parts that stand going up.to the bridge. 

14.5 J. Firmin suggested that- they put that information--in the newspaper as there 
are a lot of people who ride bikes out there and it would require that they then 
go all the way back around. 

14.6 Mr. Short added that this may not be able to keep.people from doing that, but 
they also have sufficient signage out there stating that this road/bridge is 
closed. 

14. 7 . Judge Edwards added that they have taken many steps for safety and if 
something were to happen and someone got hurt,. the county would not be 
liable. 

14 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 15 

15.1 Mr. Short' stated that they realize this is an inconvenience for many people 
who use those · bridges and hopefully they will be able to start bringing the 
bridges down and replace them in the near future. 

15.2 T. Lund strum asked if there was any current.information on where the State is 
with the Woolsey Bridge project; to which Mr. Short responded that they did 
not at this point and they have discussed taking a delegation of concerned 
citizens down to the State Highway Department in the near future to talk 
about the spefld with which they may help the county get started on that 
project. 

15.3 T. Lundstrum stated for the benefit of those new members on the Court, the 
State is working on some desig[l issues on that bridge that was constructed in 
1925. He further noted· that both bridges they are talking abOut are nearly 
100 years old. 

15.4 Judge E.dwards stated that they closed one bridge aod then closed the other 
after· the State did inspections, during wtiich they check several bridges, and 
made the county· aware of some of the major problems with these two bridges 
which made her very uncomfortable. She ',stated that closing ·these two 
bridges was not something she wanted 'to do, but believed it was necessary 
to protect' the pablic;· ShEneported that she along with ·Mr. Short and a 
representative from the Ro.ad Departmer.it went.to Brentwood to speak to the 
citize1;1s.and ·let them ,know in the community.·What they were doing and they 
were most . appreciative of this as they were aware that someone would 
eventually · get hurt. She -pointed out that sometimes drastic steps cause 
drastic things to· start to happen and she is hopeful that they will soon be able 
to move forward on this soon. 

15.5 Mr. Short stated that the Judge's administration currently covers the 
supervi,sion of 202 county employees working in about 15 different 
deparilments who all have different missions and going in different directions. 
There is a lot going Qn· every day. He·-stated if a[lyone on the Quorum Court 
has trouble getting .anything from- thpse departments that they can contact 
him directly· and he will see that they get the information that they ·are looking 
for. He noted that he is in his office at the Courthouse part of the week and 
the remaining time he ~pends"at the Road Department and he can always be 
reached QY phone regardless of where he is. 

15.6 B. Pond stated that the Harvey Dowell -Bridge is in his District and he is proud 
of that brid@e that they have been waiting on for a long time. He is not 
hesitant to drive across the bridge and sees no reason that any 80,000 pound 
gross weight vehicle could not cross it. He appreciates the job that the Road 

15 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 16 

Department does and if they used a little extra concrete in those thin walls of 
the bridge that: does not bother him at all. 

16.1 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY. JUDGE TO ENTER A 
CONTRACT FOR SERV,ICES WITH THE ·ASSOCIATION OF ARKANSAS 
COUNTIES: B. Pond introduced An Ordinance ·Authorizing The County 
Judge .To· Enter A Contract F.or Services With The· Association Of 
Arkansas Counties, and County .. Attomey Steve ·Zega read the ordinance 
that is on first reading. 

16.2 B. Pond explained that they must authorize participation in this Association 
and need this contract for risk management. 

16.3 B. Pond. made • motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on 
second reading by title only. R. Cochran seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously by those present by .voice vote. 

16.4 County Attorney Steve Zega read An .Ordinance Authorizlng .. The County 
Judge To Enter A , Contract For Service$.- With The Association Of 
Arkansas Counties by title only. 

16.5 B. Pond·made·,a.motlon to suspend the ruleJ.ai'ld plac&the ordinance on 
third and final reading by title only. R. Cochran seconded. The motion 
passed -unanimously by those present by voice vote. 

16.6 County Atto,r;ne.y Steve Zega read An Ordinance.Authorizing. The County 
Judge To ~·nter A Contract For Services . With The Association Of 
Arkansas Counties by title only. 

16. 7 B. Pond made ·a motion: to adopt the ordinance. A. Harbison seconded. 

16.8 S. Madison stated that she looked up A.C.A. §14-20-107 and it says that it 
should -be equal. to one percent of the revenue received from the County Aid 
Fund and .questioned if that is where this money comes from and how much 
money was in tme County Aid Fund from last year. 

16.9 County Attorney Steve. Zega responded that he did not .know this information. 

16.10 County Comptroller Cheryl Bolinger stated that she did not have that amount 
at this time; to which S. Madison responded that the statute says that the 
amount they pay shall be equal to 1 % of the revenue received by the County 
from the County Aid Fund and asked who did the math on that. Ms. Bolinger 
responded that she would get that information for S. Madison. 

16 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 17 

17.1 Judge Edwards asked that Ms. Bolinger get with County Treasurer Bobby Hill 
and look this up and provide-it to S. Madison. 

17.2 S. Madison aske.d how much money.they were .talking about paying to the 
Association of Counties . and' it was noted that on the Affidavit to County 
Account it shows 2015 Membership in the Association of Arkansas Counties 
at $5,933.00. 

17.3 S. Madison asked if,in return.for this $6,000, basically all .they get· is the ,ability 
to buy insurance and stated that .she has se.en the ·Association of Counties 
Legislative Packet which is a huge packet of bills1 for aj1ich they hardly ever 
talk to·anyone about. She· stated she1does not:b:elie.ve ·the AAC does much 
legislative .work .for the countjes noting. tbe .entire time st:ae spent down there, 
she only had input from the·.Assobiation of Counties. on~maybe .~o bills and 
one. was. the bill that allowed JPs who had ~rved two terms continue to 
perform marriages which . was not . even organized property .and required 
rewriting a shell bill to get it in on time. 

17.4 . Judge Edwards.stated that·she could:not say.what all goes on in the AAC, but 
she.does know that this is an' important functio·n. She noted that they provide 
insurance for many of the counties, but Washington County is self-insured 
and has their own health insurance, so they do not use it. She further verified 
that the County's Risk Management·does come through AAC. 

17.5 S. Madison aske~Mor an.explanation of what risk .management insures; to 
wt.iich .. County.Attom·ey Steve,·Zega. responded that risk management does, 
amongst other ·things, pay the attorneys that defend the County in multiple 
1983 .. lawsuits from the ;jail; are . currentl.y working on the lawsuit referred to 
eartiei; tonight with outside counsel; and they •also handle claims on anything 
related to the:-1'983.aotions, including the 1983 42 United States,Code and the 
1983 alleged civil :rights violations by the County. He stated if they were to 
lose ih court and be,assessed a judgment, that is where the claim would be 
paid from. 

17.6 S. Madison.:asked if. the risk 11'.lanagement insurance is· inclu~ed)n the $6,000 
they pay them or is this paid extra; to Which S. Zega responded· he does not 
knowithe answer to that question, but ~e knows that is a service that the AAC 
pays for them and is beyond the $6,000 claim; to which Comptroller Cheryl 
Bolinger agreed. 

17. 7 S. Madison stated what happens if they pass this and it is not 1 % of whatever 
the County Aid Fund is; to which Judge Edwards responded she did not know 
but this was always the way they tum this in. 

17 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 18 

18.1 County-Attorney-Steve Zega responded that his suspicion is that if they were 
not a contributing member of . the AAC ,whether::. that would : put their risk 
management funds at risk. He stated in other words if belonging to the AAC 
·through this particular program-is condition precedent to belonging to the risk 
management pool, it is important enough in his mind to recommend that they 
certainly· need to do it. 

18.2 S. Mapison reiterated her question that if they pass this ordinance and it turns 
ouMhat $5,933 •. is not 1 % of the money from the County Aid Fund, do they 
have to amend it; to which County Attorney Steve Zega· responded that it 
depends wbether she is talking about over billing -or under billing. He stated 
that the. AAC pr;epared the Affidavit· to County Account that they are referring 
to, so he is1assumiRg·thatthis is their bill and he wp4ld assume that they have 

. already, looked-at their County, Aid Fund, 

18.3 :S .. Madison--ronti.D.u.e~ .asking .what happens. if this ordinance is inconsistent 
with the statute; to which County Attorney. Steve . Zega .responded that it 
depends on what. the inconsistency is. He stated if it is simply an accounting 
error aad the county overpaid them,. then :they would, certainly ask for a refund 
and if they under:paiclithem, he. is sure!that ·they will come back with a bill in 
hand. 

18.4 J. Maxwell stated that it mif;llilt .be help to resolve this if they had some 
clarification as to what that $5,933 actually gets the county; to which A. 
Harbison . responded stating that there are several things that they get from 
AAC, but not much legislat~on because they .are one of the larger counties in 
the State as they, represent the majority of the counties. She stated that there 
is a list of things that ·the AAC ~rovides and. they always have the discussion 
that we would like AAC to do more .for.the county than they really do, but what 
they do provide the county cannot go witl;lout. .. She 'noted that the risk 
management has helped them settle a couple" issues with the jail and since 
she has .been on the court, AAC has received compensation from that in a 
larger amount than what they paid in. 

18.5 B. Pond .noted that this seems to be complicated, but there is no ,question that 
Washington County has many empl0yees; buildings and other facilities, with 

.. many miles of road and the bridges that they cannot go without this liability 
insuranc.e. 

18.6 Citizen Comments: There were no citizen comments made. 

1.8. 7 With no further discussion, Judge Edwards called for a vote on the 
motion to adopt the ordinance. 

18 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 19 

19.1 VOTING FOR: D. Balls, H. Bowman, .R. Cochran, R. Dennis, L. Ecke, J. 
Firmin, A. Harbison, T. Lundstr:um, S·. Madison, J. Maxwell, B. Pond, and B . 
.Ussery. The motion passed unanimously by those present. The 
ordinance was adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-.01, BOO~ NO. 9, PAGE NO. 534 

19.2 A RESOLUTION DISCOURAGING THE .USE OF SMART PHONES. 
IPHONES, . OR SIMILAR PERSONAL €0MMUNICATIONS DEVICES 
DURING MEETINGS OF THE·~OUORUM•COURT OR ANY COMMITTEE 
THEREOF: B. Ussery introduced A Resolution Discouraging The Use Of 
Smatt .. Phones, ·!Phones, Or . Similar PersonaM::ommunlcatJons Devices 
During Meetings of The Quorum Court Or Any Committee · Thereof, and 
County . Attorney Steve Zega read the resolution~ The resolution has been 
drafted by County Attorney Steve· Zega. 

19.3 B. Ussery made.a motion to adopt the ordinance. B. Pond seconded. 

19.4 T. Lundstrum stated that he. was deeply offended by the editorial that 
appeared in the Springdale News that said several JPs were clear1y sending 
text messages to each other as the panel discussed public matters. He 
stated he bas been on this court for 8 years and he has never sent a text to 
another Quorum Court member, nobody has ever sent him a text during a 
meeting, and he is. una,ware of that ever happening. He stated he is 
assuming that B. Ussery was giyen this infonnation and if so, he believes that 
he should .name the JPs who are being accused of doing . this so they can 
face the accuser anq ·h& believes that proof should be submitted that it 
happened. He stated the very idea that elected officials would carry on secret 
conversations through electronic messaging is offensive to the idea of 
conducting the ·public's.busine.ss transparentlv.. T. Lundi>trum stated that this 
court ·is made .up of honorable people and·this editorial makes them look far 
less than honorable. He noted the statement made in the article, "We 
applaud Ussery and Edwards for trying to clamp. down on this· disrespectful 
practice." He stated that he does not believe ttlat this has ever happened and 
is not a practice of this court. He stated th_a~ he was at the meeting the night 
the lady in the audience· came up and spoke about this matter and when she 
found out what was actually going on, she seemed very well satisfied with the 
explanations. 

19.5 T. Lundstrum stated that he and his wife are over 75 years old and pointed 
out if he were to have a family emergency during a meeting, he would want to 
know that immediately and it is no less disruptive of a meeting for his phone 
to vibrate and him take a quick look at it than it is for a Deputy Sheriff to have 

19 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 20 

to walk in there and tell him that he has a call coming in. If he were to receive 
a call that he had to answer he would go back to the break room to do so, so 
as not to disrupt a meeting. He stated that he appreciates the opportunity to 
make his point publically on television .because many -people who read this 
kind of editorial assume that because it is in the newspaper, automatically 
believe it. He reiterated that. the accused should .have the right to face the 
accuser. He stated that he appreciates the fact that this is a resolution 
discouraging them from doing it because unless somebody passes an 
ordinance or some kind of law prohibiting him ·from doing it, he . personally 
plans to ha\!e his cell phone at meetings. 

20.1 Robert Dennis stated-that there is-a sign on the door :coming into the Quorum 
Court Room stating. not to use phones and it is common courtesy to set 
phones on mute and not use them. He noted. when they start talking about 
dates of meetings; he needs to look on his phone's calendar for conflicts in 
his schedule, not for texting or calling someone. While he understands the 
purpose · of this · resolution and FOIA, in this day in age his phone is his 
daytimer. 

20.2 J. Firmin stated that he concurs with T. Lundstrum on this matter and was 
also disappointed with the editorial. He stated he is confident that they all 
observe FOIA. He stated if someone observes them texting from one person 
to the other, they have a responsibility to tell someone. He believes that they 
should respect each .other and does not believe that this resolution is a good 
way to start the year and .he will not support it. 

20.3 R. Cochran concurred ,with J. Firmin that this is not a good way to start their 
year and believes that T. lundstrum made good points that the accusations of 
impropriety towards this court are not well received. He stated it is not that he 
does not support the ideal of openness in government and believes that they 
practice .it.already, so will not support this resolution. 

20.4 H. Bowman -stated that he has been on. this court two. years and has never 
one time seen· anybody be disrespectful with talking or texting on the 
telephones durimg meetings. He has seen there be some kind of issue where 
someone had to .get up and leave the courtroom to handle an issue on the 
phone and he has seen. some respond to texts. He pointed out that most of 
them on this court have a business or personal interest that requires them to 
receive important texts from time to time. He believes that this is completely 
out of order and he will not support it. 

20.5 T. Lundstrum stated that the only person he has actually witnessed texting a 
Quorum Court member in this court, because he sat next to her, is Secretary 

20 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 21 

Karen Beeks texting fonner JP Canqy Clark, Chainnan: of the Finance 
Committ~. telling her to tum her mic gn or giving her some detail that she 
knew·Ms .. -Clark was not aware.of regarding fin.ance or helpful· issues and had 
nothing. to do with FOL He reit13rated that if this were actually happening on 
this court he ·agrees with the. article, but~doe~ not agree with making these 
types of accusations without any truth that it took·place. 

21.1 B. Ussery stated that he apologizes if he offended anybody, but he saw 
several people at the meeting last December :texting and believes that it was 
very disrespectful in the manner in which is was being done and several 
people in the · audience notieed that. ·tie . believes. when: people in the 
audience notice· it to -the· point that they have to -get up and ' say something, 
that is when. something<has to be done. hie, stated that this resolution does 
not in anyway say that· they. should not 1:1se..cthese devices and . th~t they are 
not an important part of whatthey do. He -explained that the purpose of this 
ordinance is that they have a .responsibility to be paying attention to what is 
going, on at this table and not wonying about talking to someone else at the 
same·time. He stated that there is no need to name names .because those 
who did it know who they are. B. Ussery stated that they are not preventing 
using calendars or that they. cannot have these devices, but .they need to 
r:espect·. the. Judge and people in the .audience and . focus. on their 
responsibility here instead of other things that do ·not concern this court. He 
stated that the texting· got out-of-hand at the meeting last December and that 
is what precipitated this resolution. - He believes th~t sometimes they need to 
be reminded thatthere are some things that< are .inappropriate. 

21.2 A. Harbison- stated· that she is sony that some people are· offended by this 
resolutiom .• :but does· not believe that they neE)d to be· texting d1,1ring Quorum 
Court meetings which both she and B·. ·Ussery have observed. She stated 
that they just want JPs to be more_ professional and the incident referred to 
appeared to be out-of-control. She stated that she is glad that B. Ussery 
brought.this resolution to.the table whether it passes ornotbecause it says 
that· they .are professionals there t<l> do tbe duty. of the county~s people and 
that they need to•pay .atter:ition .. to that1 and if .they:have: personal business to 
take care of, that they leave the room to take care of it. 

21.3 S. Madison stated·;that most of them have other lives other than being. a JP 
because this· is a part:time job after all andt she is a landlord with over 30 
tenants relying on her to provide them with shelter. She stated that the new 
world of young people text and she receives texts all the time related to her 
rental properties and can be discrete and brief in doing so . . She pointed out 
that there are people on this court who work for national :and international 
finns that are in multiple time zones that have obligations besides those they 

21 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 22 

have at these meetings and they all feel very ·deeply about the trust that the 
public has given them to do their jobs and they do ·them ito the. very best.of 
their ability and follow the letter of the law. She noted that she has her laptop 
with her that has instant messaging on it and she -just downloaded the FOIA 
booklet so she. can .search it and they cannot take such .elecironics from them 
and let them do, their jobs. She ·stated that ·she:.is not convinced .. that a useful 
purpose was served in bringing this resolution because may .have cast-doubt 
on this court. S. Madison ·stated .that she will not support this resolution and 
does not intend tCi> .follow it if it passes. 

22.1 H. Bowman stated that they have talked ·about-calendar.s on their; pbones and 
emails received . and believes that. they. need , to ·,, be careful about the 
assumptions that they make from what they see. because not everything is 
what Jt appears to .be ·and referred to the old saying of what 1you get when you 
break the word ,"assume" down you get a good explanation of_ what happens 
when you make-the wrong ass1:.1roption. 

22.2 T. Lundstrum stated that he · is not offended by B. Ussery, but rather is 
offended by this '9ditorial, which says that several· JPs were clear:ly sending 
text m.essages .. to each other. He··pointed out during Finance and Budget 
meetings· he would· have -his phone on calculator trying to figure. up .numbers 
they were dealililg with in that conversation, so he .agr.ees that it could look like 
he was texting: He-stated that the public needs to remember that there are 
more' functions ,in their phones than just texting· and calling and. the night of 
the meeting in December, the ladycthat called this to their attention was well 
satisfied that night with the explanation· that .she heard from them. He further 
noted that E. Madison who. has another· firm in Califomia, .. which is 2-3 hours 
earlier than · they , are, and was receiving ·text messages that night from 
somebody in .her,firm·that she replied to,, but it does not.mean that she did .not 
hear what was going on· in the meeting. · 

22.3 Citizen Comments: Lorraine O'Neal, resident of 3001 West Wedington Drive 
in Fayettevillle, addressed the Quorum :Court stating .. that she understands the 
offense that some of them took from this editorial as. she too can see both 
sides of the issue. She stated that she has, been employed by someone.who 
would insist that phones be turned off and put in their locker because none of 
them are so important that someone ,cannot wait. When they are here, she 
believes that their focus should be on the business .at hand and everything 
else will just have to wait. 

22.4 With no further discussion, Judge Edwards called for a vote on the 
motion to adopt the resolution. 

22 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 23 

23.1 .VOTING ·FOR: A. Harbison, B. Pon..d,.and B,. U~sery .VOTING.AGAINST: D. 
Balls, H .. Bowmai:i, R_Coctiran,·R,Qenni.$~ L .Eck~~ J: Finnin, T.; Lundstrum, 
S. Madison, aAd.J. Maxwell . . 'Jtie motlonffa,118'd with thr:ee'.·members voting 
in favor. and hi'rJei members .v.oting agal.rlst the motion. · · · 

•\ . 

23.2 Judge Edwards stated that' sh&.appifeciates ·the discussion· and some points 
ha~e been m~de. She noted that she·does not;even bring, her:.pho11e into the 
Quorum Court Room because she knows it will ring and she will not be able 
to answer it. . She tt:tanked B. Ussery .for .the, re59lution; stating that it may 
make people more aware of~what they ·ar~ talking about. 

23.3 · · · AN .ORDINANCE ·CAl:.l'ING:·A<SRE€1AL Ef:ECTION·ON 'rl-:IE '.QUESTION OF 
Tt;tE LEW. OF THE ANN.UAl:i DUES .OF l'HE. WEST° FORK aURAL FIRE 
DEP.AR.TMENT •'AND .RRESGRIBING ... OTHER '"MA'Ff'.ERS . PERTAINING 
THERETO: .: A Harbison· introd1:1ced An- Ordinance, Calling. A Special 
Election \Qn The Questlom0f.. The Levy. Of !f~e Annual Dues Of The West 
Fork Rural . Ffre Department And Prescribing Other Matters Pertaining 
Thereto·. 

23.4 County Attorney Steve Zega addressed this item explaining that in order to 
oomply·with State statue, they will need to have the··election within 60 days of 
it being read_,. and so it cai:ino.t be adopte'd until M~rch . . .Therefore,· they cannot 
move up tl:le reading.s -.to'nigl;it for. the .e!~ctioa to take place when the West 
Fork Rural Fire Department wal)ts it. He ~tated however, they can. suspend 
the rules·to read :the.of.dinance by·title only·. · 

23.5 .. s .. Madlson' made a motion·to1sUsJ)4'nd,the ·rules and read tfle.ordlnance 
by title Qnly • .. J, Firmin secon~ed. The· motjon pas!ed•unanlmously by 
voice vote by·those present.- · 

23.6 County Attorney Steve Zega read An Ordinance Calling A Special Election 
On .. !f'hf<'Questlon· ()f. :pie l;.e\'y"Of ·'ffl_e Annual Dues· Of T.he West Fork 
Rural . Fire Department And Prescribing, Other Matters Pertaining 
Thereto, by title only. 

23.7 A. Harbisoi:i explainecl ·that thi.s ls .an ordinan~ for a special election to place 
the -West Fork· Rural' Fire ~oepartment dues on the · ballot and if approved, 
these dues will go on the. residents' real estate tax bill. 

23.8 Judge Edwards announced tf:lat this ordinance would be moved forward to 
their next meeting and will continue this for two more months and then that 
will get their dates correct_so that'the election can be held in June. 

23 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 · 
Page 24 

24.1 AN,EMERG!tNG:Y ORDINANCE RATIFYING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
GRANTED BY THE PLANNING,AND·ZONING-BOARD: . J. !rirmin ·introduced 
An Eme.rgency Of.dlnatice .RatifyJng A CoC1ditiooal Use Permit Granted 
By The Planniog And Zoning Board, and; County Attorney Steve Zega read 
the ordinance. The Planning Board granted a Conditional Use Permit on 
November· 6· for. Baldwin·..Cell :rower..,,. This ordinance coritains.€1n emergency 
clause-making it.effeciivEHmmediately uppn passage. · 

24.2 John Firmin-stated thaHhis.was a cell tower that had been appealed; to which 
Planning Direator -Juliet Richey responded that the appeal has been 
withdrawn. The applicant for the tower and the appellant were able to work 
out.an-::agreemernt that changed the·style;of the -tower slightly to. where it will 
now ' jast be a . flag pole type or monopole tower utilizing internal mount 
antennas instead of the antennas hanging. externally. Ms. Richey referred to 
attachment #14.2 that gaes,thrQugh;.the conditi0ns,originally approved by the 
Planning Boar-d~ and staff is ·.recommending:ithat all.of those 1Fer:riain. the same, 
plus the addition under #t.ir;i- General ·.COnditions, "The style of tower should 
be a flag pole type tower (or monopole tower utilizing,_.internal mount 
antennas". 

24.3 John ._ Firmin .. stated that since. it is an -emer:gency ordinance that goes into 
effect . immediately . upon .passage, he, gets .. a little riervous about. public 
perqeption that Jhey.are justi)ushing tt:iis. thr..ovgh. 

24.4 Planning Director Juliet Riehey1·responded stating cthat this .is the way they 
always do CUPs and .the· appeal time period has run as they had 30 days 
from when the. Planning' Beard-approved -it on· Nove.mber 6 and in.that peri0d 
ther.e was only the orae . appeal. She ·further noted that they notified the 
neighbor.. of the pending appeal and then -when it ~as cancelled, as well as 
letting them know that it would be on the agenda tonight. 

'• . 
24.5 J. Firmin ma.d-. a motion .to-adopt tbe. QFdlnance • . B. Pond seconded. 

24.6 R. Cochran asked how many residents were notified in this area; to which 
Juliet Richey responded that it was something Jike 35 residents. He asked if 
there was only the one person out of 35 that -had a ,problem and that has been 

.resolved; to which Ms. Richey responded that there were several that had 
questions or comments, but only one person appealed. 

24.7 Citizen Comments: There were no citizer:1 comments made. 

24.8 With no further discussion, , J.udge Edwards called for a vote on the 
motion to adopt the ordinance. 

24 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 25 

25.1 VOTING FOR: D. Balls, H. Bowman, R. Cochran, R. Dennis,. L. Ecke, J. 
Firmin, A. Harbison, T. Lundstrum, S. Madison, J. Maxwell, B. Pond, and B. 
Ussery. The motion passed unanimously by those present. The 
ordinance was adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015~02, BOOK NO. 9, PAGE NO. 535 

25.2 AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE RATIFYING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
GRANTED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD: J. Firmin Introduced 
An Emergency Ordinance Ratifying A Conditional Use Permit Granted 
By The Planning And Zoning Board, and County Attorney Steve Zega read 
the ordinance. The Planning Board granted a Conditional Use Permit on 
January 8 for Cooks' Rentals. This ordinance contains an emergency clause 
making it effective immediately upon passage. 

25.3 J. Firmin made a motion to adopt the ordinance. A. Harbison seconded. 

25.4 Citizen Comments: There were no citizen comments made. 

25.5 With no further discussion, Judge Edwards called for a vote on the 
motion to adopt the ordinance. 

25.6 VOTING FOR: D. Balls,· H. Bowman, R. Cochran, R. Dennis, L. Ecke, J. 
Firmin, A. Harbison, T. Lundstrum, S. Madison, J. Maxwell, B. Pond, and B. 
Ussery. The motion passed unanimously by those present The 
ordinance was adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03, BOOK NO. 9, PAGE NO. 539 

25. 7 OTHER BUSINESS: Executive Assistant Karen Beeks introduced Carly 
Sandidge, who is the new Quorum Court Coordinator having replaced Jessica 
Biondi, who is attending the University of Arkansas and working there. She 
stated that either of them can be e-mailed if there is anything that they can do 
to help any of the court member$_, 

25.8 S. Madison asked if their technology is such that things on the website could 
be PDF's rather than scanned because it is hard to work with a scanned 
document; to which Judge Edwards advised that she would check into this. 

25.9 CITIZEN COMMENTS: Dan Heitmeyer, Reporter with the NWA 
Newspapers, addressed the Quorum Court stating that he wanted to make it 
clear that the article on cellphone usage that T. Lundstrum was talking about 
was an editorial written by an editor, and not by him. 

25 



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the 
Washington County Quorum Court 
January 15, 2015 
Page 26 

26.1 ADJOURNMENT: The meeting,adjoumed at 7:45·p.m. 

Respectf14lly submitted, 

~ 
· Caf!fy-Sandidge-
Quorum Court Coordinator/Reporter 

26 


